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20000 Initial Comments

*****ATTENTION******

20000

NH LICENSING CORRECTION ORDER

In accordance with Minnesota Statute, section 144A.10,
this correction order has been issued pursuant to a
survey. If, upon reinspection, it is found that the
deficiency or deficiencies cited herein are not
corrected, a fine for each violation not corrected
shall be assessed in accordance with a schedule of
fines promulgated by rule of the Minnesota Department
of Health.

Determination of whether a violation has been corrected
requires compliance with all requirements of the rule
provided at the tag number and MN Rule number indicated
below. When a rule contains several items, failure to
comply with any of the items will be considered lack of
compliance. Lack of compliance upon re-inspection with
any item of multi-part rule will result in the
assessment of a fine even if the item that was violated
during the initial inspection was corrected.

You may request a hearing on any assessments that may
result from non-compliance with these orders provided
that a written request is made to the Department within
15 days of receipt of a notice of assessment for
non-compliance.

INITIAL COMMENTS:

On 1/28/26 through 1/29/26, a complaint survey was
conducted at your facility by surveyors from
the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH).Your facility
was IN compliance with the MN State Licensure.

The following complaint was reviewed during the survey.
H52584280C (2722713)
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20000 Continued from page 1
Licensing Correction Orders using Federal software.

The facility is enrolled in ePOC and therefore a
signature is not required at the bottom of the first
page of state form. Although no plan of correction is
required, it is required that the facility acknowledge
receipt of the electronic documents.
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20000 Initial Comments

*****ATTENTION******

20000

NH LICENSING CORRECTION ORDER

In accordance with Minnesota Statute, section 144A.10,
this correction order has been issued pursuant to a
survey. If, upon reinspection, it is found that the
deficiency or deficiencies cited herein are not
corrected, a fine for each violation not corrected
shall be assessed in accordance with a schedule of
fines promulgated by rule of the Minnesota Department
of Health.

Determination of whether a violation has been corrected
requires compliance with all requirements of the rule
provided at the tag number and MN Rule number indicated
below. When a rule contains several items, failure to
comply with any of the items will be considered lack of
compliance. Lack of compliance upon re-inspection with
any item of multi-part rule will result in the
assessment of a fine even if the item that was violated
during the initial inspection was corrected.

You may request a hearing on any assessments that may
result from non-compliance with these orders provided
that a written request is made to the Department within
15 days of receipt of a notice of assessment for
non-compliance.

INITIAL COMMENTS:

On 1/28/26 through 1/29/26, a complaint survey was
conducted at your facility by surveyors from
the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH).Your facility
was IN compliance with the MN State Licensure.

The following complaint was reviewed during the survey.
H52584280C (2722713)

Minnesota Department of Health is documenting the State
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Licensing Correction Orders using Federal software.

The facility is enrolled in ePOC and therefore a
signature is not required at the bottom of the first
page of state form. Although no plan of correction is
required, it is required that the facility acknowledge
receipt of the electronic documents.

20000

PROVIDER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION
(EACH CORRECTIVE ACTION SHOULD BE

CROSS-REFERENCED TO THE
APPROPRIATE DEFICIENCY)

(X5)
COMPLETION

DATE

STATE FORM Event ID: 1E2595-H1 Facility ID: 00865 If continuation sheet Page 2 of 2



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

PRINTED: 03/18/2026

FORM APPROVED

OMB NO. 0938-0391

STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES
AND PLAN OF CORRECTIONS

NAME OF PROVIDER OR SUPPLIER

Franciscan Health Center

(X1) PROVIDER/SUPPLIER/CLIA
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:
245258

(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION

A. BUILDING

B. WING

(X3) DATE SURVEY COMPLETED

01/29/2026

STREET ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

3910 MINNESOTA AVENUE , DULUTH, Minnesota, 55802

(X4) ID
PREFIX

TAG

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES
(EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL
REGULATORY OR LSC IDENTIFYING INFORMATION)

ID
PREFIX

TAG

F0000 INITIAL COMMENTS

On 1/28/26 through 1/29/26, a standard abbreviated
survey was conducted at your facility. Your facility
was NOT in compliance with the requirements of 42 CFR
483, Subpart B, Requirements for Long

Term Care Facilities.

The following complaint was reviewed. H52584280C
(2722713) with no deficiency issued.

As a result of the investigation, a deficiency was
issued at F609.
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The facility's plan of correction (POC) will serve as
your allegation of compliance upon the Departments
acceptance. Because you are enrolled in ePOC, your
signature is not required at the bottom of the first
page of the CMS-2567 form. Your electronic submission
of the POC will be used as verification of compliance.

Upon receipt of an acceptable electronic POC, an onsite
revisit of your facility may be conducted

to validate that substantial compliance with the
regulations has been attained.

F0609
SS = D

Reporting of Alleged Violations

CFR(s): 483.12(b)(5)(i)(A)(B)(c)(1)(4)

F0609 F609: It’s Franciscan Health Centers policy to report
alleged violations of abuse, neglect, or mistreatment
in a timely manner.

02/27/2026

§483.12(c) In response to allegations of abuse,
neglect, exploitation, or mistreatment, the facility
must:

Administrator and/or designee will implement corrective
action for residents R1 and R2 affected by this
practice by:

§483.12(c)(1) Ensure that all alleged violations
involving abuse, neglect, exploitation or mistreatment,
including injuries of unknown source and
misappropriation of resident property, are reported
immediately, but not later than 2 hours after the
allegation is made, if the events that cause the
allegation involve abuse or result in serious bodily
injury, or not later than 24 hours if the events that
cause the allegation do not involve abuse and do not

The Minnesota Department of Health conducted an
investigation beginning 01/28/2026 through 01/29/2026
for resident R1 and R2.

Social Services will interview R1 and R2 to ensure no
further concerns of maltreatment.

Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that other
safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See reverse for further instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90
days following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 days
following the date these documents are made available to the facility. If deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued program
participation.
LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE TITLE (X6) DATE
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Continued from page 1
result in serious bodily injury, to the administrator
of the facility and to other officials (including to
the State Survey Agency and adult protective services
where state law provides for jurisdiction in long-term
care facilities) in accordance with State law through
established procedures.

§483.12(c)(4) Report the results of all investigations
to the administrator or his or her designated
representative and to other officials in accordance
with State law, including to the State Survey Agency,
within 5 working days of the incident, and if the
alleged violation is verified appropriate corrective
action must be taken.

This REQUIREMENT is NOT MET as evidenced by:

Based on interviews and record review the facility
failed to report an allegation of sexual assault within
2 hours to the State Agency (SA) for 2 of 3 clients
(R1, R2) when reviewed for abuse.

F0609 Continued from page 1

Administrator and/or designee will assess residents
having the potential to be affected by this practice
including:

All residents have the potential to be affected by this
practice.

Administrator and/or designee will implement measures
to ensure that this practice does not recur including:

The Maltreatment Reporting Guidelines policy was
reviewed to ensure that it clearly defines what
constitutes a reportable allegation, MDH reporting
timeframes, and required internal notification steps.

A standardized Abuse Allegation Reporting Checklist was
implemented to ensure timely reporting.

Findings include:

Facility incident report dated 1/20/26 indicated on the
morning of 1/20/26 at approximately 9:15 a.m.,
registered nurse (RN)-A reported R1 came to the dining
room to greet his wife (R3) when an aide asked R1 to
move to passed him. R1 moved and continued around the
table to his wife (R3) and came behind R2 and groped
her breasts without R2's consent. R1 was redirected to
his room and was educated on the matter. R1 had little
to no remorse for the action he had made towards R2.
RN-A stated R2 was aware the incident happened, but
shortly after R1 groped her she closed her eyes and
showed no visual negative reaction or distress. R2 was
later interviewed by staff and had slight to no recall
on the incident. Police were called and R1 and R2's
responsible parties were notified. RN-A who reported
the incident had not worked at the facility for a
length of time and was not aware of the plans in place
for R1 and R2, however the plan of care was followed.
Facility reported incident to SA on 1/20/26 at 4:25
p.m.

When interviewed on 1/29/26 at 2:14 p.m., social worker
(SW) stated it was decided to make the report to SA
after the investigation was mostly done and she was not
aware to make the report first. SW agreed the incident
was reported late and not within the two hours
according to regulations and facility policy.

All facility staff were trained on the facility
Maltreatment Reporting Guidelines policy including the
definitions of all types of Abuse and Neglect and the
guidelines for timely reporting allegations.

Administrator and/or designee will monitor corrective
actions to ensure the effectiveness of these actions
including:

Social Services will interview random residents to
ensure no complaints of maltreatment. Audits will be
completed beginning the week of 02/17/2026 daily for 1
week, then 3x/week for 4 weeks, and quarterly
thereafter.

Administrator will monitor corrective actions by
completing random audits on allegations of maltreatment
of a vulnerable adult that were reported to the State
Agency to ensure they were reported timely. Audits will
be completed beginning 02/17/2026 daily for 1 week,
then 3x/week for 4 weeks, and quarterly thereafter.

Audit results will be brought to the QAPI committee
quarterly for review and further recommendation.

Facility policy titled “Maltreatment Reporting Completion Date: 02/27/2026
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Guidelines” reviewed date 11/26/24, indicated if
alleged maltreatment occurs, report immediately, but
not later than 2 hours after the allegation is made if
the incident involved abuse, neglect, or financial
exploitation, including injurie of unknown sources and
misappropriation of VA property.
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